
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

5:30 PM Call BOA Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 25, 2023 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_SEPTEMBERMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearing

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Minimum Setback Standards

Request for Variance, submitted by Corey Behlke (Owner) to allow construction of a 

dwelling addition 18 feet from a side yard property line where 30 feet is required. Parcel 

37.031.0100. 39033 70th AVE Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of 

Section 31 TWP 111 Range 17 in Leon Township. A1 Zoned District.  

BOA_PACKET_BEHLKE.PDF

Adjourn BOA Meeting

Call PAC Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 18, 2023 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_SEPTEMBER_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosures Of Interest

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: "Olson Addition" Preliminary And Final Plat Review

Request, submitted by Dave Rapp (Authorized Agent) on behalf of David Olson (Owner) 

for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed Olson Addition plat comprising 

approximately 126.49 acres. Parcels 35.002.0901, 35.002.1300, 35.002.1500, and 

35.003.0800. 40783 Bow Trail Nerstrand, MN 55053. Part of the SW ¼ and Part of the 

NW ¼ of Section 02 and Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 03 all in 

TWP 110 Range 18 in Holden Township. A1 Zoned District.   

PACPACKET_OLSONPLAT_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Dale and Diane Olson (Owners) to rezone 13.92 acres from A-1 

(Agriculture Protection District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District) to establish one 

dwelling site. Parcel 39.008.3200. 480th Street Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SW ¼ 

of the SW ¼ of Section 08 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township.  

PACPACKET_OLSON_REDACTED.PDF

Adjourn PAC Meeting

Joint Discussion For BOA And PAC

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

5:30 PM Call BOA Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 25, 2023 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_SEPTEMBERMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearing

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Minimum Setback Standards

Request for Variance, submitted by Corey Behlke (Owner) to allow construction of a 

dwelling addition 18 feet from a side yard property line where 30 feet is required. Parcel 

37.031.0100. 39033 70th AVE Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of 

Section 31 TWP 111 Range 17 in Leon Township. A1 Zoned District.  

BOA_PACKET_BEHLKE.PDF

Adjourn BOA Meeting

Call PAC Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 18, 2023 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_SEPTEMBER_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosures Of Interest

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: "Olson Addition" Preliminary And Final Plat Review

Request, submitted by Dave Rapp (Authorized Agent) on behalf of David Olson (Owner) 

for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed Olson Addition plat comprising 

approximately 126.49 acres. Parcels 35.002.0901, 35.002.1300, 35.002.1500, and 

35.003.0800. 40783 Bow Trail Nerstrand, MN 55053. Part of the SW ¼ and Part of the 

NW ¼ of Section 02 and Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 03 all in 

TWP 110 Range 18 in Holden Township. A1 Zoned District.   

PACPACKET_OLSONPLAT_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Dale and Diane Olson (Owners) to rezone 13.92 acres from A-1 

(Agriculture Protection District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District) to establish one 

dwelling site. Parcel 39.008.3200. 480th Street Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SW ¼ 

of the SW ¼ of Section 08 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township.  

PACPACKET_OLSON_REDACTED.PDF

Adjourn PAC Meeting

Joint Discussion For BOA And PAC

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/821a0002-9ba3-4db9-a02c-8d646c212701


BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 September 25, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

1 

 

 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment was called to order at 5:00 PM by Chair Daniel 
Knott at the Goodhue County Government Center Board Room.   

Roll Call  

Commissioners Present: Daniel Knott, Randy Rechtzigel, Dennis Tebbe, Scott Breuer. 

Commissioners Absent: Darwin Fox, and Keith Allen.  

Staff Present: Land use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, and 
Zoning Assistant William Lenzen 

1. Approval of Agenda 
1Motion by Commissioner Tebbe and seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel to approve the meeting 
agenda.     

 
Motion carried 4:0 

2. Approval of Minutes  

Chair Knott noted a few grammatical errors on the August minutes.  
2 Motion by Commissioner Knott and seconded by Commissioner Breuer to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes as amended.   

  
Motion carried 4:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest 
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.   
  
4. Public Hearings:  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance to Minimum Lot Size Standards 
Request for Variance, submitted by Daniel Prebe (Owner) to R-1 Suburban Residence District standards to 
allow the creation of a parcel with less than 1 acre of buildable area to establish a new dwelling. Parcels 
32.130.1800, 32.130.1850, and 32.130.1840. Lots 4, 5, and 6 of the Town of Frontenac plat in Florence 
Township.  
 
Lenzen presented the staff report and attachments. 

Commissioner Tebbe stated the survey shows 8 feet between the property line and the garage. What is 
the required setback? 

Pierret stated that it’s 10 feet at the Township level and 8 feet at the County level. 

Commissioner Knott stated that in the report it mentioned that the PAC would be considering Mr. Prebe’s 
request. What was the PAC’s decision? 

Pierret stated that the PAC did approve Mr. Prebe’s request.  

Commissioner Breuer asked why the report mentions three parcels. 

Lenzen stated that it was originally three parcels and three lots that are now being platted into two 
parcels. 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 September 25, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

2 

 

 

Commissioner Breuer questioned whether the driveway would be shared between the two parcels.  

Daniel Prebe (Applicant) stated that it would not be shared. The original house would have its own 
driveway that would exit on the northwest side of the lot and Mr. Prebe’s new lot would use that part of 
the driveway on the south side of the original drive for access.  

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
 
3After Chair Knott asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Rechtzigel and seconded by Commissioner Tebbe to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 4:0  
 
Commissioner Tebbe stated that the configuration of these two smaller lots remains consistent with the 
Frontenac area for lot sizes and he has no problem approving the request. 
 
Commissioner Breuer agreed.  
 
4Motion by Commissioner Tebbe, seconded by Commissioner Breuer for the Board of 
Adjustment to: 

• adopt the amended staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Daniel Prebe (Owner) to R-1 Suburban Residence 
District standards to allow the creation of a parcel with less than 1 acre of buildable area to establish a 
new dwelling.  
 
Motion carried 4:0  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance to Minimum Setback Standards 
Request for Variance, submitted by Paul Goplen (Owner) to A-1 Zoning District standards to allow a dwelling 
addition to be established less than 60-feet from the 415th Street Right-of-Way. Parcel 44.012.0401. 11049 415th 
Street Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 12 TWP 110 Range 17 in Wanamingo 
Township.  
 
Lenzen presented the staff report and attachments.  
 

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
 
5After Chair Knott asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner Tebbe 
and seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 4:0 
 
Commissioner Tebbe stated that the proposed addition looks to be in line with the existing barn concrete 
slab in terms of its proximity to the road right of way. It’s pretty straightforward to support this request.  
 
Commissioner Breuer noted that the original porch is about 10 feet wide and the new addition will be as 
wide as the existing house and only a few feet closer to the road than the existing porch.  



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 September 25, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

3 

 

 

 
Commissioner Knott asked if the addition would extend out as far as the landscaping seen in the photos.  
 
Paul Goplen (Owner) indicated that it would not extend that far.  
 
6Motion by Commissioner Breuer, seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel for the Board of 
Adjustment to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Paul Goplen (Owner) to A-1 Zoning District 
standards to allow the construction of a dwelling addition 45 feet from the 415th Street Right of Way  
 
Motion carried 4:0 
 
5. Other-Discussion 
 
Commissioner Knott asked if there were any pending applications for the next meeting on October 23rd. 
 
Pierret stated that no formal applications have come in at this time.  
 
Lisa Hanni stated that we will start working on a Comprehensive Plan update and there will be a joint 
meeting with the Planning Advisory Committee on November 13th. William and Sam will be working on 
going over what we have achieved and what wasn’t achieved from the 2016 Comprehensive Plan. In 
January we will have our Comp Plan meetings in a subcommittee to discuss where we want to go with 
the process. Cannabis rules will also be discussed and what the County wants and should do with 
cannabis legislation.  
 
Commissioner Rechtzigel asked if the November 13th meeting will be a joint meeting. 
 
Hanni stated November 13th will be a joint meeting with the Planning Commission and Board of 
Adjustment.    
 
7Motion by Commissioner Rechtzigel, seconded by Commissioner Breuer to adjourn the 
BOA meeting at 5:30 PM.  

Motion carried 4:0 

Respectfully submitted:   
 
William Lenzen, Zoning Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 September 25, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

4 

 

 

MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the BOA meeting agenda.                                                                                                                    
Motion carried 4:0 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes as amended.  
Motion carried 4:0  
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 
Motion carried 4:0  
4 APPROVE the Variance to Minimum Lot Size Standards.   
Motion carried 4:0  
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 
Motion carried 4:0 
6 APPROVE the Variance to Minimum Setback Standards. 
Motion carried 4:0 
7 Motion to Adjourn 
Motion carried 4:0 

                                                        



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: November 13, 2023 
Report date: November 3, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Corey Behlke (Owner) to allow construction of a 
dwelling addition 18 feet from a side yard property line where 30 feet is required. 

Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Corey Behlke (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 39033 70th Ave. Dennison, MN 55018 
Parcel: 37.031.0100 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 31 TWP 111 Range 17 in 
Leon Township. 
Township Information: Leon Township signed off on the building permit with no additional 
comments.  
Zoning District: A-1 (Agricultural Protection District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Plan and Maps 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Corey Behlke (Owner) has applied for a variance to A-1 minimum setback standards to construct a 41-
foot by 42-foot addition on the north side of the existing dwelling. The proposed structure would be 
approximately 18 feet from the side yard setback line at its closest point where 30 feet is required. 

Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 Property line and Right-of-Way setbacks are intended to create separation among adjacent 
structures and roads to allow for adequate access and accommodate future road expansion. 

 The existing home is located 38 feet from the north property line and is a conforming 
structure. The proposed addition would be located 18 feet from the side yard property line. 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

The addition is intended to add additional indoor living space to the dwelling on the main 
level. 

 The north property line is a section line separating sections 30 and 31 of Leon Township. The 
Applicant owns land on both sides of the section line therefore the variance request is to 
decrease setbacks from a “commonly owned” property line.  

2)  The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports the use of existing rural residences to 
provide rural living opportunities in the unincorporated areas of Goodhue County.  

The proposed addition appears consistent with the Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan. 

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s request to construct a dwelling addition is a reasonable use of property in the 
A-1 District. The addition, as proposed, would meet all other required setbacks. 

 The Applicant desires to construct an addition as an office or family room with a full bath on 
the north side of the home for additional living space.  

 The property is an existing 20-acre parcel which is a conforming lot size in the A-1 District (2-
acre minimum). The property contains a single-family dwelling with an attached garage and 
two storage sheds. One of the sheds was issued a variance in 2009 to be constructed up to the 
north property line/section line.  

The home was originally permitted and constructed in 1992.  

 The Applicant stated that there are no alternative locations for the addition due to the bluff to 
the west, utilities to the south, and the design of the house. This limits the potential for an 
addition to only the north. 

 The Applicant alternatively considered platting the properties to combine his two parcels 
however rejected this alternative due to time constraints associated with the platting process 
(surveying, Planning Commission and County Board approval timelines, and obtaining 
signatures to record the plat before beginning construction).   

 The property is surrounded by A1-zoned properties on all sides. Surrounding uses include 
low-density residential among wooded blufflands and tilled cropland.    

 The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Single-family dwellings are a permitted use in the A-1 Zoning District. The request does not 
constitute a use variance.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the 
Board’s determination. In granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly 
related to, and bearing a rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance. 

 
 
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

Staff Recommendation: 
• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 
APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Corey Behlke (Owner) to A-1 Zoning 
District standards to allow the construction of a dwelling addition 18 feet from the north property 
line. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Figure 1: North Side of House. Area of proposed addition. 
 (provided by William Lenzen) 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

 
Figure 2: West Side of House, showing proximity of bluff to house.  
(provided by William Lenzen) 

 
Figure 3: North Side of House, showing project area with an approximate section line drawn 
for reference.  (provided by William Lenzen) 
 
 
 
 
 









DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2023.

2022Aerial Imagery
Map Created October, 2023 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A1

7
0

T
H370310100

COREY A BEHLKE
20

370301401
COREY A BEHLKE

9.09

370301400
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

66.91

0 50 100 15025
US Feet

BOARD OF ADUSTMENT

Public Hearing
November 13, 2023

Corey Behlke (Owner)
A1 Zoned District

Part of the NE 1/4 of NE 1/4 of Section 31
TWP 111 Range 17 in

Leon Township

Request for Variance to Minimum Setback
Standards to allow construction of a dwelling

addition18 feet from side yard property
line where 30 feet is required.

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW

wlenzen
Polygon



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2023.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created October, 2023 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A1

7
0

T
H

11341132
1130

1128

1126

1150
1124

1122

1152

1120

1154

11
18

111
6

1162

1114

1112

1110

11
44

1164

1108

11
42

1106

11
40

11
60

1158

1138

11
48

1156

1102

1146
11

36

1104

1160

11
48

1136

11
60

1138

1142

1140

1158

1144
1142

1156

1146

7
0

T
H

370310100
COREY A BEHLKE

20

370301401
COREY A BEHLKE

9.09

370301400
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

66.91

370291200
ELDRIDGE C FLOM

80

370301402
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

4

0 90 180 27045
US Feet

MAP 03: ELEVATIONS
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Public Hearing
November 13, 2023

Corey Behlke (Owner)
A1 Zoned District

Part of the NE 1/4 of NE 1/4 of Section 31
TWP 111 Range 17 in

Leon Township

Request for Variance to Minimum Setback
Standards to allow construction of a dwelling

addition18 feet from side yard property
line where 30 feet is required.



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2023.

2022Aerial Imagery
Map Created October, 2023 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A1

7
0

T
H

7
0

T
H

370310100
COREY A BEHLKE

20

370310200
COREY A BEHLKE

20

370301401
COREY A BEHLKE

9.09

370301400
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

66.91

370301402
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

4

370310900
JESSIE L OTTERNESS TTEE

20

370301700
KEVIN D WHITE

20

0 140 280 42070
US Feet

BOARD OF ADUSTMENT

Public Hearing
November 13, 2023

Corey Behlke (Owner)
A1 Zoned District

Part of the NE 1/4 of NE 1/4 of Section 31
TWP 111 Range 17 in

Leon Township

Request for Variance to Minimum Setback
Standards to allow construction of a dwelling

addition18 feet from side yard property
line where 30 feet is required.

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2023.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created October, 2023 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A1

A2

400TH

7
0

T
H

387TH

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 1

6
3

R
D

9

6

6

12

7
0

T
H

387TH

370320300
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

188.55

370320600
N&L LLC
142.47370320401

DAVID L BOBERT REV TRUST
99.33

370291000
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

113.55

370312100
DAVID THAO

45

370291200
ELDRIDGE C FLOM

80

370300600
G WALLACE JACOBSON

85.25

370312300
MICHAEL A LANDRY ET AL

49

370291200
ELDRIDGE C FLOM

80

370312000
GREGORY J FLUEGEL

49.3

370290200
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

50

370320901
DARRYL S FLOM

41.21

370290600
TERRY JACOBSON

51.02

370310100
COREY A BEHLKE

20

370310200
COREY A BEHLKE

20

370312400
RICHARD L SVIGGUM

50.51

370290700
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

53.23

370301500
G & K DEVELOPMENT LC

40

370320703
DEAN O TREANGEN

45.78

370320400
JONATHAN L AAKRE

29.56

370301400
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

66.91

370301800
G & K DEVELOPMENT LC

157

370301700
KEVIN D WHITE

20

370311300
MICHAEL A LANDRY ET AL

41.83

370313500
DARRYL S FLOM

40

370301800
G & K DEVELOPMENT LC

157

370301400
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

66.91

370301600
BRUCE H JUENGER

20

370311900
ROGER C HOUGO

15

370311000
JESSIE L OTTERNESS TTEE

20

370310900
JESSIE L OTTERNESS TTEE

20

370300700
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

76.7

370310500
JOYCE A AAKRE

10

370310300
CLARENCE FLOM

10

370301401
COREY A BEHLKE

9.09

370310400
ALAN E RODGERS RLT

10

370312500
RICHARD L SVIGGUM

8.69

370312501
JANIESE L SCHEER

7.46
370311700

SONDYA ROSE
5

370311100
JANIESE L SCHEER

6

370291100
DEREK A NEUMANN

6.45

370311600
JOYCE A AAKRE

5

370320900
STEVEN VANCE

13.79

370320800
MITCHELL R SANDSTROM

5

370290800
DEREK A NEUMANN

5.11

370301402
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

4

0 800 1,600 2,400400
US Feet

PUBLIC NOTICE: NEIGHBORHOOD MAILING MAP
PLANNING COMMISSION

Public Hearing
November 13, 2023

Corey Behlke (Owner)
A1 Zoned District

Part of the NE 1/4 of NE 1/4 of Section 31
TWP 111 Range 17 in

Leon Township

Request for Variance to Minimum Setback
Standards to allow construction of a dwelling

addition18 feet from side yard property
line where 30 feet is required.



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2023.

2022 Aerial Imagery
Map Created October, 2023 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A1

7
0

T
H

12

7
0

T
H

387TH

370320300
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

188.55

370291200
ELDRIDGE C FLOM

80

370320401
DAVID L BOBERT REV TRUST

99.33
370312300

MICHAEL A LANDRY ET AL
49

370301700
KEVIN D WHITE

20

370310100
COREY A BEHLKE

20

370310200
COREY A BEHLKE

20

370301400
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

66.91

370291200
ELDRIDGE C FLOM

80
370301500

G & K DEVELOPMENT LC
40

370301400
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

66.91

370310500
JOYCE A AAKRE

10

370310300
CLARENCE FLOM

10

370310400
ALAN E RODGERS RLT

10

370312501
JANIESE L SCHEER

7.46

370311600
JOYCE A AAKRE

5

370301600
BRUCE H JUENGER

20

370320400
JONATHAN L AAKRE

29.56

370311000
JESSIE L OTTERNESS TTEE

20

370310900
JESSIE L OTTERNESS TTEE

20

370301401
COREY A BEHLKE

9.09

370311100
JANIESE L SCHEER

6

370311800
KAREN E ZIBOLSKI

5
370312000

GREGORY J FLUEGEL
49.3

370310800
GREGORY J FLUEGEL

5

370311700
SONDYA ROSE

5

370311200
DARIN K JOHNSON ET AL

5
370310600

JOYCE A AAKRE
3

370301402
HERNKE'S FARM LAND INC

4

370290800
DEREK A NEUMANN

5.11

370320500
EIDSVOLD CEMETERY ASSN INC

1

0 510 1,020 1,530255
US Feet

MAP 02: VICINITY MAP
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Public Hearing
November 13, 2023

Corey Behlke (Owner)
A1 Zoned District

Part of the NE 1/4 of NE 1/4 of Section 31
TWP 111 Range 17 in

Leon Township

Request for Variance to Minimum Setback
Standards to allow construction of a dwelling

addition18 feet from side yard property
line where 30 feet is required.



Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
September 18, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 
PM by Chair Chris Buck at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 
Roll Call 
Commissioners Present: Tom Gale, Richard Miller, Darwin Fox, Howard Stenerson, Richard 
Nystuen, Chris Buck, and Todd Greseth 
Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke  
Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning 
Assistant William Lenzen 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

 

1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Greseth to approve the 
meeting agenda. 
 
Motion carried 7:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Greseth; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 7:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.    
 

4. Public Hearings  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: “Prebe Estates” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request submitted by Daniel Prebe (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed 
Prebe Estates plat comprising approximately 1.69 acres. Parcels 32.130.1800, 32.130.1850, and 
32.130.1840. 59134 Westervelt Avenue Way Frontenac, MN 55026. Lots 4, 5, and 6 of the Town of 
Frontenac plat in Florence Township. R-1 Zoned District.  
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
  
Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 
 
No one spoke for or against the request.   
 



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
September 18, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

3After Chair Buck called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 7:0 
 
Commissioner Stenerson stated that he has seen problems arising with septic systems on lots 
smaller than 2 acres. The reason for having 2-acre lots is to allow extra space for a new septic 
system should the old one fail. Places like Frontenac and Welch that have lots smaller than 1 
acre, and high dwelling density, might want to consider going to a community septic system or 
installing a public system. He is concerned that cluster housing developments at some point 
will have to install treatment facilities.   
  
Commissioner Fox stated that Welch has a community septic system and the costs are divided 
to each property owner. The Township helped get the community septic system installed and 
started but the Township doesn’t own the system, it’s owned by all of the individual 
landowners and the cost is assessed to each owner.  
  
Commissioner Stenerson asked if the County got a loan or grant to help Welch Township with 
distributing the costs. 
 
Land Use Director Lisa Hanni stated they had a loan from DEED, then it was billed back to the 
landowners. Ben Hoyt (County Sanitarian) was working with “New Frontenac” on the 
feasibility of installing a community septic system but it never took off.  
 
4It was moved by Commissioner Greseth and seconded by Commissioner Gale for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Daniel 
Prebe (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed Prebe Estates plat 
comprising approximately 1.69 acres. Parcels 32.130.1800, 32.130.1850, and 32.130.1840. Lots 
4, 5, and 6 of the Town of Frontenac plat in Florence Township. R-1 Zoned District. 
 
Motion carried 7:0 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request, submitted by Laurie Johnson (Applicant) on behalf of Terry G Forehand Et Al (Owners) to 
rezone 20.49 acres from A-2 (General Agriculture District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). 
Parcel 41.036.2500. TBD County 24 BLVD Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ 
of Section 36 TWP 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township.  

 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Stenerson stated his concern that if this parcel is zoned R1 Residential, is there 
the potential for it to be split in the future and sold off in smaller lots? 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
September 18, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Pierret stated that if the owners wanted to make this parcel smaller they would have to get it 
platted and approved by the Planning Commission and County Board. The Little Cannon River 
runs right down the middle of this parcel and the floodplain takes up about half the acreage of 
the parcel. Between the cost of platting, building in a flood zone, and the cost of getting the 
floodplain professionally surveyed it’s very unlikely this parcel would be split into smaller, 
buildable lots.  

 Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 

Thomas Fletcher (33205 57th Ave Cannon Falls) asked where would their road access be 
located. 

Kathy Anderson (realtor) stated that the existing right-of-way access that Bobby Underwood 
uses would only be shared within the public right-of-way and then the driveway would split 
after the public right-of-way onto the Forehand’s parcel.  

Thomas Fletcher asked whether the builders would remove the row of trees between the 
Forehand and Underwood/Rechtzigel properties. 

Kathy Anderson stated the trees would remain and it is a sloped area that provides more 
screening.  

John Peknic (32574 Oxford Mill Road Cannon Falls) stated his concern over Agricultural land 
being turned into residential and increasing houses rather than agricultural uses. He urged 
the commission to stick to the current zoning restrictions.  
 
Commissioner Stenerson asked whether the proposed dwelling would be in the existing field. 
 
Terry Forehand (owner) confirmed the field is the proposed dwelling location.  
 
Commissioner Stenerson noted the field is a stand-alone field and building a dwelling here 
would not negatively impact other farming operations.  
 
Kathy Anderson stated that Stanton Township has an ordinance requiring each residence to 
have a minimum size of 20 acres. This property meets that requirement. 
 
5After Chair Buck called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Fox and seconded by Commissioner Stenerson to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson stated that he appreciates having 20-acre lots for septic systems.   
 
Motion carried 7:0 
 
6It was moved by Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner 
Greseth for the Planning Advisory Commission to: 
 



Page 4 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
September 18, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the finding of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request, submitted by Laurie 
Johnson (Applicant) on behalf of Terry G Forehand Et Al (Owners) to rezone 20.49 acres from A-2 
(General Agriculture District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 41.036.2500.  

Motion carried 7:0 
 
Other Discussion 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that it has been brought up many times about approaching 
individual Townships regarding zoning density changes.  

Hanni stated that Stanton and Pine Island Townships were the only Townships that wanted 
more dwellings and other Townships didn’t want to see increased dwelling densities per past 
surveys.  

Commissioner Stenerson mentioned that a Farmette zone approach might be something to 
consider for the future. He explained that a farmette is a parcel consisting of 5 acres, zoned 
agricultural. That way it allows people to live in a rural setting, raise some livestock, and 
doesn’t have to be zoned residential. 

Discussion continued regarding proposed Comprehensive Plan updates and the potential to 
discuss density with Townships. There was also discussion on lowering the number of PAC 
members from nine to six or seven to more easily have a quorum and save on per diems. 
Cannabis legislation and permitting were also briefly discussed.  
7ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Greseth to 
adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 6:50 p.m.  

Motion carried 7:0 

Respectfully Submitted, 

William Lenzen Zoning Assistant  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
September 18, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda 
Motion carried 7:0 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes 
Motion carried 7:0  
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 7:0  
4 APPROVE the request for a Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Motion carried 7:0   
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 7:0  
6 APPROVE the request for a Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Motion carried 7:0 
7 ADJOURN.  Motion to adjourn the meeting 
Motion carried 7:0 

                                                           



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 1 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: November 13, 2023 
Report date: November 3, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: “Olson Addition” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request, submitted by Dave Rapp (Authorized Agent) on behalf of David Olson (Owner) for 
Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed Olson Addition plat comprising approximately 
126.49 acres.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Dave Rapp (Authorized Agent) on behalf of David Olson (Owner)  
Address of zoning request: 40783 Bow Trail Nerstrand, MN 55053 
Parcel(s): 35.002.0901, 35.002.1300, 35.002.1500, and 35.003.0800 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Part of the SW ¼ and Part of the NW ¼ of Section 02 and Part of 
the E ½ of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 03 all in TWP 110 Range 18 in Holden Township 
Zoning District: A1 (Agricultural Protection District) 
Township: Holden Township has been made aware of the request and must sign off on the plat 
before official recording. The Township has indicated that proposed Lot 4 may not be buildable 
under Township zoning rules. This will be discussed at their Tuesday, November 14th meeting.  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
Dave Rapp with Rapp Land Surveying has prepared a Preliminary and Final Plat to reconfigure four 
existing parcels in two sections of Holden Township. The reconfigured parcels will allow land in 
Section 02 and Section 03 to be combined to facilitate access from Bow Trail to parcel 35.003.0800.  

According to the Goodhue County Subdivision Ordinance, any land subdivision that dedicates any 
interests to the public such as easements or roads must be formally platted. The proposed “Olson 
Addition” dedicates frontage to Bow Trail. Parcel 35.003.0800 is already considered buildable under 
County zoning rules as it is within an A1 zoned section with 2 existing dwellings where up to 4 
dwellings may be constructed. The Applicant has not indicated a desire to develop proposed Lot 4. 
No additional building sites would be created by the plat. Section 02 is also zoned A1 and already has 
5 dwellings. 

The plat meets all requirements for access and parcel size.  

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Dave 
Rapp (Authorized Agent) on behalf of David Olson (Owner) for the Preliminary and Final Plat of the 
proposed “Olson Addition” comprising approximately 126.49 acres. 















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: November 13, 2023 
Report date: November 3, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone)  
Request, submitted by Dale and Diane Olson (Owners) to rezone 13.92 acres from A-1 (Agriculture 
Protection District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District) to establish one dwelling site.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Dale and Diane Olson (Owners) 
Address of zoning request: 480th Street Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel: 39.008.3200 
Legal Description: Part of the SW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 08 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island 
Township. 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Project Review (Rezone) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Overview:  
Dale and Diane Olson (Owners) have submitted a “change of zone” request for a 13.92-acre parcel in 
Pine Island Township to rezone the property from A1 (Agriculture Protection District) to R1 
(Suburban Residence District) to allow the potential to establish one dwelling site.  

The current A1 zoning classification does not allow dwelling establishment on the property due to the 
A1 section density maximum of 4 dwellings. Section 08 of Pine Island Township currently has 16 
dwellings, 15 within the A1 zoned portions of the section and one within a Conservation Subdivision 
that was approved in 2022.  

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
 The subject property consists of a single parcel comprising 13.92 acres. The parcel consists of 

woodlands and approximately 1.4 acres of tilled cropland.  

 The property is currently zoned A1, Agriculture Protection District. Adjacent properties to the 
west, north, and south across 480th Street are zoned A1. Land to the east is part of a Conservation 
Subdivision approved in 2022 for one dwelling site.  

 The subject property is surrounded by medium-density residential development, woodlands, and 
tilled cropland. There are 11 dwellings in the immediate vicinity on 480th Street and 191st Avenue 
Way.  

 The parcel is located less than 2 miles from the City of Zumbrota.  

 The property is not located within a Historic Preservation District. It is not anticipated that any 
historic amenities will be negatively impacted as a result of the proposed rezone. The property is 
not located within any Shoreland or Floodplain districts.   



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 

 

Proposed Uses: 
 The Applicant has proposed to establish one dwelling on the south portion of the parcel if 

rezoned. Septic system installation will be permitted by Goodhue County Environmental Health 
and must be properly designed and inspected according to state and county rules.  

Accessibility: 
 The dwelling would be accessed via 480th Street. The road authority, Pine Island Township, will 

need to permit any new access points or construction work within their right-of-way.  

 Highway 52 is located 0.15 miles west of the property. Future access to Highway 52 may be 
restricted here during future MnDOT projects. The property would then be accessible via 480th 
Street from 195th Avenue to the east from Highway 60 BLVD to the north.  

Planning Information: 
 The R1 District is intended to provide a district that defines and protects areas suitable for low to 

medium-density residential development as the principal use of the land and to allow related 
facilities desirable for a residential environment. It is also intended that the district allows 
varying densities of development in accordance with the ability to provide water and sewer 
facilities. 

 The property consists of woodlands with a tilled area at the southernmost point along 480th 
Street. Section 08 does not contain any registered feedlots and there are no feedlots within 1,000 
feet or 96% OFFSET distance.  

 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows:  

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Downs-Hersey Complex 2-6% 10.3 80.4% 
 

Prime Farmland 

Joy Silt Loam 1-3% 2.5 19.6% Prime Farmland 
 

 Staff performed a review of the surrounding area’s density and zoning classification for 
consideration: 

o There are 8 dwellings along 191st Avenue Way and on the north side of 480th Street, all 
zoned A1. The parcels range in size from 0.51 acres to 7.56 acres. There are two dwellings 
south of 480th Street in Section 17 of Pine Island Township also zoned A1.  
 Seven of these existing dwellings were constructed between 1962 and 1974, prior 

to zoning ordinances and building codes being enforced in Goodhue County. Only 
the dwelling on parcel 39.017.0600 was constructed after this time (in 1978) with 
a Special Use Permit. All of these dwellings were built on Prime Farmland.  

o Between the 8 dwellings discussed in Section 08, there are only 3 septic systems. Parcel 
39.008.3000 has a private septic system. Parcels 39.008.3701, 39.008.3700, 
39.008.3600, 39.008.3601, and 39.008.2900 share a septic system that is located on 
parcel 39.008.2900. These dwellings also share two wells. Parcels 39.008.3500 and 
39.008.3400 share a septic system.   
 With this information in mind, these properties could be candidates for rezoning 

to R1 due to their lot size, use, and configuration. The Planning Commission and 
County Board could direct staff to begin the rezoning process for these dwellings 
by beginning discussions with the property owners and the Township. 

o The surrounding neighborhood area is similar to other R-1 Zoned areas in Goodhue 
County given lot sizes, shared septic systems, and the use of the properties.  
 Staff’s goal is to appropriately zone properties based on their use and location. 

Similar projects to rezone properties from Agriculture to Residential have been 
undertaken in the past in Stanton Township.     



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 3 

Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan: 

 The proposed rezone may conflict with the goals and objectives of the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan:  

“Support the establishment of rural residences to provide rural living opportunities in the 
unincorporated areas of Goodhue County” 

“Work with Townships to evaluate and designate suitable residential sites that minimize 
conflicts with agricultural and rural uses” 

“Direct the location of new or replacement dwelling sites in areas that minimize loss or 
conversion of prime agriculture soils” 

The only portion of prime agricultural soils that would be impacted would be the 1.4 tilled acres 
along 480th Street. The rest of the prime agricultural soils are located in the wooded area that is 
not being used for agricultural purposes.  

Pine Island Township:  

The Applicants have discussed their proposal with Pine Island Township. The Township is in favor of 
adding dwelling density in their Township.   

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff has prepared two recommendations for the Planning Advisory Commission to consider: 
 
The Planning Advisory Commission may: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request from 
Dale and Diane Olson (Owners) to rezone 13.92 acres from A-1 (Agricultural Protection District) to 
R-1 (Suburban Residence District) and direct staff to begin the process of rezoning existing 
properties along 191st Avenue Way and 480th Street in Section 08 to R-1 by working with residents 
and Pine Island Township.   
 
OR 
 
The Planning Advisory Commission may: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners DENY the map amendment request from Dale 
and Diane Olson (Owners) to rezone 13.92 acres from A-1 (Agricultural Protection District) to R-1 
(Suburban Residence District).   
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

Project Review per Article 3, Section 2, Subd. 5-10: 
Subd. 5  A.   The names and addresses of the petitioner or petitioners and their signatures to the 

petition.  See application  
B.  Survey information: See application 
C.  The current and proposed district:  A1 to R1 
D.  The current use and the proposed use of the land.  The property is currently 

vacant and consists of woodlands with approximately 1.4 acres of tilled 
cropland.  

E. The reason for the requested change of zoning district. Due to County dwelling 
density restrictions, the Applicant has proposed to rezone the property to 
a residential district to allow the establishment of one dwelling.   

F.  A copy of the soil map showing the soils types within the proposed boundary and the 
surrounding area. A soils map for the site has been prepared. 
G.  Prime Farmland Rating of the soil types in F. 
 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows: 

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Downs-Hersey Complex 2-6% 10.3 80.4% 
 

Prime Farmland 

Joy Silt Loam 1-3% 2.5 19.6% Prime Farmland 
 
H.  A statement of how the requested change is compatible with the Goodhue County Comprehensive 
Plan including but not limited to the following: 

1.  The environmental impacts of the proposed use of land on the: 
a.    Groundwater 
b. Natural plant and animal communities 
c.    Existing trees and vegetation 
d. Bluffland stability 
e.    Shoreland stability 

The property is not located within any bluffland, Shoreland, or 
Floodplain Districts. The proposed dwelling would be established on 
the tillable acreage and the woodlands would be retained.  
Septic system installation will be permitted by Goodhue County 
Environmental Health and must be properly designed and inspected 
according to state and county rules. 

2.  The compatibility with surrounding land uses 
Surrounding land uses include medium-density residential and 
tilled cropland among wooded areas. There are 11 dwellings in the 
immediate vicinity with 8 dwellings located along 191st Avenue Way 
in a residential, neighborhood-like setting.   

3. The physical and visual impacts on any scenic or historic amenities within or 
surrounding the proposed parcel. 
It is not anticipated that any historic amenities will be negatively 
impacted as a result of the proposed rezone.  

Subd. 6 The housing density of the affected Section 
 Section 08 is an A1-zoned section with 16 dwellings. A1 Districts allow a 

maximum of 4 dwellings per section. There are currently 15 dwellings within 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

the A1 portions of the section and one dwelling within a Conservation 
Subdivision therefore no dwelling site eligibility exists.  

Subd. 7 The impact on any surrounding agricultural uses 
Approximately 1.4 acres of the property is used for row crop agriculture. All of 
the land is classified as Prime Farmland however a majority of the parcel is 
wooded. The Prime Farmland that would be affected is the 1.4 acres of tilled 
cropland. There are no existing feedlots in Section 36. No new Feedlots may be 
established in an R1 District or within 1,000 feet or 96% OFFSET distance from 
an R1 District or existing dwellings. Section 08 consists mainly of tilled 
cropland and woodlands with a residential cluster in the SW ¼ of the section.   

Subd. 8 The impact on the existing transportation infrastructure 
The Applicant’s property is currently accessed off of 480th Street (aggregate 
surface) using an existing field access. Highway 52 is located 0.15 miles west of 
the property. Future access to Highway 52 may be restricted here during 
future MnDOT projects. The property would then be accessible via 480th Street 
from 195th Avenue to the east from Highway 60 BLVD to the north. 

Subd. 9 The impact on surrounding zoning districts 
 The property and all surrounding properties to the north, west, and south are 

zoned A1. Land to the east is located within a Conservation Subdivision 
District. The Planning Commission and County Board may consider directing 
staff to begin the process of rezoning properties along 191st Avenue Way to 
Residential by working with property owners and Pine Island Township.  

Subd. 10 A statement concerning the cumulative effect and compatibility of the requested zoning 
change on the affected Township and any cities located within 2 miles of the proposed 
parcel. 
Rezoning the subject parcel to R1 does not appear to have negative cumulative 
effects on the immediate surrounding area or the City of Zumbrota. The 
surrounding area is already used primarily for tilled cropland and woodlands 
with medium-density residential uses in the immediate vicinity. Staff is willing 
to begin the rezoning process for the properties along 191st Avenue Way to R-1 
which would best suit the existing lot sizes and uses of the properties.  

Subd. 11. Additional information as may be requested by the Planning Commission or zoning staff. 
   







Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

N574B Downs-Hersey complex, 2 to 6 
percent slopes

10.3 80.4%

N602A Joy silt loam, 1 to 3 percent 
slopes

2.5 19.6%

Totals for Area of Interest 12.8 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 
class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the 
landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the 
characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 
observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. 
Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without 
including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made 
up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor 
components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the 
map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called 
noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a 
particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties 
and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different 
management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They 
generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the 
scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas 
are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a 
given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit 
descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor 
components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not 
mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it 
was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 
miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the 
usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate 
pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or 
landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The 
delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, 

Custom Soil Resource Report

11
















	Roll Call
	1. Approval of Agenda
	Motion carried 4:0
	Motion carried 4:0
	Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing
	Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing
	Behlke_ContourMap
	Behlke_MailingMap
	Behlke_PermitReview_GIS_Basemap2019
	Behlke_PropertyOverview
	Behlke_VicinityMap
	Site Plan



